
AUDIT
2.00 pm MONDAY, 12TH FEBRUARY, 2018

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 
the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 

possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers 

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Local Authority Funding of Third Sector Services 
To consider the attached report. 1 - 16

4. Internal Audit Information Reports 
To receive summary copies of published Internal 
Audit reports for Members information:

- School Uniform Grants 2017/18
- Education Improvement Grant (EIG) 2017/18
- Cyfarthfa Primary School 2017/18 (Follow up)
- Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reductions 
2017/18 (Follow up)
- Bank Reconciliation 2017/18 (Follow up)
- Main Accounting 2017/18 (Follow up)

Due to the size of the Information Reports paper 
copies have not been included with the agenda 
papers.  Electronic versions have been made 
available to Members via the Ipads.

5. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair.

6. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillor D Roberts (Chair)

Councillors: C J Barry, J Amos, L Davies, S Jago, 
C T Jones, G Lewis and D Sammon

Lay Member(s): David Gibby

Together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Local Authority Funding of Third Sector Services 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 In January 2017, the Wales Audit Office (WAO) produced a report outlining the poor 
performance of Welsh Local Authorities in relation to the funding and scrutiny of the 
third sector. With regards to Merthyr Tydfil CBC, it was stated that the Local 
Authority had "poor performance management arrangements and weakening 
accountability for effective scrutiny of third sector activity and performance".

1.2 The Wales Audit Office made recommendations to Merthyr Tydfil CBC which 
suggested that Elected Members challenge the performance of Officers and
departments across the Local Authority in addressing gaps and perceived 
weaknesses.

1.3 On the Tuesday 17th October 2017, officers from the Community Regeneration 
Department developed and presented a report to Scrutiny Committee outlining its 
previous experience of supporting the third sector in Merthyr Tydfil; however, it 
became evident that the Council does not take a corporate approach to addressing 
the recommendations within the WAO Report and if any improvements were to be 
made would require more than just the Community Regeneration Department.

1.4 It was requested that the Community Regeneration Department lead on the cross-
departmental completion of the WAO Checklist (Appendix 1) and a Third Sector 
Funding Working Group be set-up and Chaired by the Chief Officer, Alyn Owen 
where the content of the Checklist, funding processes, new Social Enterprise 
Strategy and the Local Authority's annual financial contribution to the third sector will 
also be discussed.

Date Written Monday 29th January 2018
Report Author Ryan Barry & Chris Long
Service Area Community Regeneration
Committee Date Monday 12th February 2018

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



1.5 This Report outlines the Council's current situation and planned work which has 
been captured in the attached Checklist and summarises the next steps the Local 
Authority will take to improve the overall relationship with the third sector.    

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That the Audit Committee discusses and comments on the issues set out in the 
report. 

2.2 That the Audit Committee identifies any further information they would like to 
receive. 

2.3 That the Audit Committee notes the contents of this report.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 The third sector is the term used to describe the range of organisations which are 
neither state run, nor part of the private sector and includes voluntary and community 
organisations, social enterprises, mutual and cooperatives. These organisations are 
diverse in both size and scope, ranging from small, locally based community groups, 
to large, multi-national charities. In Wales, the third sector consists of over 32,500 
different organisations; encompasses 230,000 trustees; 1.13 million volunteers and 
people helping out in their community; and 51,000 employees.

3.2 In January 2017, the Wales Audit Office (WAO) produced a report (Local Authority 
Funding of Third Sector Services - Across Wales Report) which outlined the 
performance of all 22 Welsh Council's with regards to the funding and scrutiny of the 
third sector in their own respective county borough's. In relation to Merthyr Tydfil 
CBC, it was highlighted that the Local Authority had "poor performance management 
arrangements and weakening accountability for effective scrutiny of third sector 
activity and performance".

3.3 One of the recommendations from the initial 2017 assessment stipulated that 
Elected Members scrutinise the completed review checklist (Appendix 1) and 
challenge the performance of officers and departments across the Local Authority 
in addressing gaps and perceived weaknesses. 

3.4 In October 2017, the Governance Scrutiny Committee placed an item on its Work 
Programme to request a report providing details as to how the Local Authority has 
addressed this WAO recommendation with the Scrutiny Committee then deciding 
how it wished to improve its performance going forward.

3.5 During the October 2017 Scrutiny Meeting officers reported on the agenda item in 
more detail, however, it was evident from the discussion that at that stage the 
Council had no formalised corporate approach in addressing the recommendations 
written in the WAO report and generally a dis-jointed approach to awarding and 
evaluating the funding given to the third sector.Page 2



3.6 One of the key 'actions' from the October 2017 Scrutiny Committee Meeting related 
to Alyn Owen’s (Chief Officer) suggestion that a cross-departmental group should be 
established in order to formalise a wider, corporate approach to completing the 
attached 'Checklist' rather than obtaining just a Community Regeneration view. 

3.7 In order to complete the 'Checklist' the Community Regeneration Department has 
individually met with a number of internal departments in order to gain a fully 
inclusive view of the current processes that the Council has in funding and 
evaluating the third sector in Merthyr Tydfil with this report identifying the next steps 
the Local Authority has to take to comply with the WAO framework. 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 In 1998, the first Compact between Welsh Government and the third sector was 
introduced. The then National Assembly for Wales had reinforced this policy initiative 
and established the Voluntary Sector Scheme and a Partnership Council between 
the Assembly and the third sector.

4.2 In 2000, a local Compact between the Council and third sector in Merthyr Tydfil was 
published. A dedicated Liaison Group was set-up with the responsibility for 
implementing the Compact across the County Borough. The following year another 
Compact between Bro Taf Health Authority and the third sector in the region was 
again published.

4.3 Prior to the end of the most recent Compact (2008) where an agreement was 
formally in place between A Partnership between the Council, Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Health Board, Cwm Taf NHS Trust and the third sector in Merthyr Tydfil which 
provided a framework that captured shared aims, objectives, mutual respect and 
understanding.

4.4 The 2008 Compact was originally written in the spirit of 'Making the Connections', the 
then flagship policy of the Welsh Assembly Government. Making the Connections: 
Delivering Beyond Boundaries (2006) sets out how the Assembly Government plans 
to address the issues raised by the Beecham Review which called for radical 
changes to the way in which public services are planned, designed and delivered in 
Wales, and a greater involvement of the third sector in public services. Overall, the 
Beecham Review paved the way for setting out the role of new Service Boards and 
introduced new local service agreements. 

4.5 The Merthyr Tydfil Compact complemented this new policy direction and 
underpinned the relationship between the local statutory bodies and third sector. The 
document embraced the concept of developing a “public service ethos” rather than a 
“public sector ethos” for the ultimate benefit of the customer and general public in 
Merthyr Tydfil.

4.6 The Compact was originally intended to guide the process of working in partnership 
in order to deliver public services. It covered issues of process rather than 
substance, i.e. the way plans are made and decisions taken – rather than the 
content of those plans and decisions.

Page 3



5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 There has been no formal Compact in place between the Council and the third 
sector since 2008; although the Council has continued to financially support certain 
third sector organisations, some with formal contracts on an annual basis.

5.2 The Council currently have a draft version of a completed Wales Audit Office's 
Checklist which can be used to assess the current structure the Council has in terms 
of effectively engaging with the third sector, our strategic arrangements with regards 
to funding given to the sector and programme design.

5.3 The Council are currently in the process of establishing a dedicated Third Sector 
Funding Working Group, chaired by the Chief Officer, made-up of those internal 
departments that procure services to the third sector and the Chief Executive of 
VAMT - Ian Davy. This newly formulated group will consider the content of the 
completed WAO Checklist and improving the current internal working processes 
aligned to the third sector.

5.4 The Council are currently undertaking an exercise of compiling the annual amount of 
finance that the Council gives to the third sector for services provided to the public. 
The Community Regeneration Department are in the process of liaising with all 
associated departments that procure services to the sector with a view of producing 
a report by the end of this financial year.

5.5 The European & External Funding Team continues to facilitate the Merthyr Tydfil 
Social Enterprise Network (MTSEN) with the main project being the development of 
the new Merthyr Tydfil Social Enterprise Strategy. The 'Strategy' will focus on 
enhancing the reach of the third sector and consider future opportunities for 
expansion, identify local and national support mechanisms / agencies and outline a 
number of priorities over the next three years. The 'Strategy' will look to be ratified 
by Council and subsequently launched in early 2018.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 By the Council establishing a dedicated Third Sector Funding Working Group it will 
be the clusters sole responsibility to improve and formalise the current Local 
Authority funding and evaluation processes it has with the third sector in terms of 
procurement, design and future funding of service.

6.2 With a proposed Third Sector Funding Working Group in place they will be the entity 
that will ratify the current draft 'Checklist' and programme periodic times where the 
document will be re-written based on positive changes that come from the group. 
These positive changes along with amended copies of the proposed 'Checklist' will 
be presented back to Scrutiny at set periods.

6.3 The Council will gain a more recent understanding regarding the amount of finance 
its gives to the third sector over the financial year. Furthermore, it is envisaged that 
the Third Sector Funding Working Group will instil a more formalised evaluation 
mechanism of those services provided by the sector in order to ascertain impact, 
areas of improvement and value for money.

Page 4



6.4 From March 2018 Merthyr Tydfil will have a conclusive Social Enterprise Strategy 
which the third sector can use as a tool to access information surrounding business 
development, support, governance and funding opportunities. The 'Strategy' will 
inform the third sector in terms of the Local Authority's own vision of how it will work 
with and support the sector over the next three years and outline the current support 
agencies and mechanisms out there to support the future enhancement of the 
sector.

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

7.1 Council will now go through a process of organising the initial Third Sector Funding 
Working Group Meeting which will take place after the subsequent Scrutiny 
Committee being held on the 13th February 2018. 

7.2 The Third Sector Funding Working Group, which will be Chaired by the Chief Officer 
and made-up of internal Council departments and VAMT, will be tasked with 
finalising and ratifying the draft Checklist which will inevitably be formally presented 
back to Scrutiny Committee later on in the year (to be agreed by Scrutiny Committee 
at the 13th February 2018 Meeting). 

7.3 The initial Third Sector Funding Working Group Meeting will be used as a 
mechanism to discuss ways to improve the Council's processes in terms of funding 
and evaluating the services provided by the third sector, consider the amount of 
annual finance given to the sector and the new Social Enterprise Strategy (as well as 
other agenda items).  

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES

8.1 The current work and future proposals outlined in this Scrutiny Committee Report 
positively contribute to the Wellbeing Objectives in many forms. These are outlined 
below under each of the Wellbeing Objectives headings:

Working Life:
The Community Regeneration Department will continue to support the third sector to 
evolve, expand, diversify and respond to future opportunities, which in turn, will 
develop an environment and infrastructure where third sector businesses flourish.

Environmental Wellbeing:
Through the continued work of the department the third sector will run initiatives and 
services which protect, enhance and promote the natural environment, countryside, 
their heritage and cultural assets. 

Living Well:
The Council supports (financially and physically) a number of organisations who's 
core ethos is based around making communities safer and where people live 
independently and have good physical and mental wellbeing.

Page 5



ALYN OWEN
CHIEF OFFICER COMMUNITY 
REGENERATION

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS
REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 

PROTECTION

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Appendix A - Draft 
MTCBC Checklist - 

January 2018

January 2018 Attached as Appendix 1

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 6



 DRAFT - Checklist for Local Authorities Effectively Engaging and Working with the Third Sector:

AREA: IN PLACE: UNDER DEVELOPMENT: NOT IN PLACE:
1.  Strategic Arrangement:
VISION:
The local authority has an agreed vision 
on how it will work with the third sector 
that covers all services and all third 
sector funding.

Traditionally, MTCBC previously had a 
Compact which set-out the parameters 
of work and funding of the third sector. 
Unfortunately, this Compact has not 
been in place for a number of years 
2008). Additionally, in 2011 there was a 
joint 'Commission Accomplished' 
published between MTCBC, RCTCBC, 
Cwm Taf Health Board, VAMT and 
Interlink which focussed on 
commissioning policy development 
projects, but again this is now outdated.

The Local Authority has no up to date 
Compact or any other formal vision 
document in place at present.

The vision has been shared with, and is 
understood by, all relevant staff in the 
local authority.

There is no up to date, formalised vision 
document in place which can be shared 
with MTCBC staff.

The vision has been shared with, 
endorsed by and is understood by 
elected members.

There is no up to date, formalised vision 
document in place which can be shared 
with elected members.

The vision has been shared with, and is 
understood by, the local county 
voluntary council.

There is no up to date, formalised vision 
document in place which can be shared 
with county voluntary council's (CVC's).

The vision has been disseminated to 
third sector organisations working with 
the local authority.

There is no up to date, formalised vision 
document in place which can be shared 
with third sector organisations.

CORPORATE STRATEGY:
The local authority has a corporate 
strategy for working with the third 
sector that covers all departments and 
services.

The principles of a corporate strategy 
being in place to work with the third 
sector is not formally set within the 
Council's stricture, however, it could be 
argued that the PSB, which has members 
from within the third sector strategically 
aligns itself with this section. 

MTCBC is currently developing a new 
Merthyr Tydfil Social Enterprise Strategy 
which will focus on a number of key 
development opportunities and issues 
set within this 'Checklist'. The final draft 
of this 'Strategy' will be ready in early 
March 2018 and will go through the 

P
age 7



Additionally, there is also a Cwm Taf 
Wellbeing Plan which is a partnership 
which helps the associated Local 
Authorities achieve their wellbeing 
objectives.

internal ratification process thereafter.

The strategy translates the corporate 
vision into practical actions.

No strategy in place at present.

The local authority has designated a 
corporate lead for the third sector who is 
responsible for overseeing and 
coordinating the totality of the local 
authority's third sector funding.

The Local Authority currently has a 
number of Chief Officer's in place that is 
the designated corporate leads to parts 
of the third sector which are dependent 
on the services they provide.

There is no one, stand-alone corporate 
lead that is responsible for overseeing 
and coordinating the totality of the local 
authority's third sector funding.

AREA: IN PLACE: UNDER DEVELOPMENT: NOT IN PLACE:
COMPACT:
The local authority has an up-to-date 
compact with the third sector.

There has not been any form of compact 
with the third sector since 2008; 
however, the Local Authority (various 
departments) has continued to fund 
certain third sector organisations 
without any formalised structure in 
place. 

The compact clearly outlines and defines 
the relationship and expectations of the 
local authority and the third sector in 
working together.

Post 2009, there does not seem to be 
any formalised value for money 
exercises, outputs or result based 
objectives being assessed as part of the 
finance given to certain third sector 
organisations.

There is a shared understanding 
between the local authority and the 
third sector about what can be achieved 
through working together.

There is no such formalised document in 
place that outlines any form of shared 
understanding between the two entities.

The compact is tailored to the needs of 
the local area and has been developed in 
partnership with the third sector.

No Compact I place 

The compact is reviewed regularly. The Compact has not been reviewed 
since 2008.

P
age 8



The compact considers funding made to 
the third sector from health bodies and 
police and crime commissioners.

The European and External Funding 
Team are currently working with the 
Local Authority's Procurement 
Department to collate the amount of 
finance given to the third sector by 
individual departments. This will be 
available by the end of February 2018.

The Compact has not been in place since 
2008; however, the Local Authority's 
European and External Funding Team 
have previously undertaken an exercise 
which captures the levels of funding 
given to third sector back in 2015/16 and 
is currently in the process of capturing 
the last financial years figures.

COUNTY VOLUNTARY COUNCIL:
The local authority and the county 
voluntary council have agreed the 
latter’s remit and responsibilities as well 
as its limitations.

There is currently a long established 
agreement in place between the Council 
and VAMT which contributes to the core 
funding of the organisations and sets 
some of the objectives / expectations for 
the entity via the Social Services 
Directorate. 

There is currently no formalised 
agreement in place between the Local 
Authority and county voluntary council.

There is agreement on how and what 
the county voluntary council represents 
the third sector on.

As above there is no formalised 
agreement in place between the two 
entities, however, there are currently a 
number of third sector representatives 
that sit on a range of bodies and steering 
groups at present. Furthermore, there 
was previously a Code of Practice 
between the Council and VAMT which 
the proposed Third Sector Funding 
Working Group could potentially 
redevelop collaboratively and publish.

AREA: IN PLACE: UNDER DEVELOPMENT: NOT IN PLACE:
PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENTS:
The role of the third sector is identified
and agreed on all suitable and required
partnerships and committees at a:

The most recent document that outlined 
the role of the third sector across all 
departments was the 'Commission 
Accomplished' document published in 
2011 in partnership with MTCBC, 
RCTCBC, Cwm Taf Health Board, VAMT 
and Interlink which focussed on 

P
age 9



commissioning policy development 
projects, but as stated previously, this is 
now obsolete.

 Corporate level – in the work of strategic 
partnerships and corporate scrutiny 
committees:

MTCBC does have a Supporting People 
Planning Group in place.

 Department level – in specific
partnership arrangements to support
wider policy agendas within defined
areas:

The European and External Funding 
Team continue to coordinate the 
Merthyr Tydfil Social Enterprise Network 
(MTSEN). The MTSEN is made-up of local 
support agencies that support the third 
sector with the group being fully 
constituted with a Terms of Reference. 
There are also a number of Terms of 
References in place for a range of Social 
Regeneration Department partnerships 
which detail partner roles and 
responsibilities. These groups are the 
likes of the Tackling Poverty Strategic 
Group, Early Years Steering Group, 
Families First Stakeholder Group, ACL 
and Play Partnership - as examples.  

 Service level – on local partnerships and 
specific service-led initiatives:
UNDERSTANDING ENGAGEMENT WITH THE THIRD SECTOR:
The local authority has a central record 
of all funding to third sector 
organisations made by the local 
authority which is refreshed annually.

The Procurement Department manage a 
centralised 'Contracts Register' which is 
used to collate all information on those 
services commissioned through the Local 
Authority's central contracting process.

The local authority collates financial
information and reports at least 
annually on the totality of its third 
sector funding
showing:

Generally, individual Local Authority 
departments collate their financial 
information. From an overall 
perspective, the European & External 
Funding Team collated a full financial 
record of funding given to the third 
sector during the financial year of 
2015/16.

The European and External Funding 
Team are currently working with the 
Local Authority's Procurement 
Department to collate the amount of 
finance given to the third sector by 
individual departments. This will be 
available by the end of February 2018.

P
age 10



Which organisations are funded by the
local authority;

Contracts above a certain value are 
reported to Council detailing third sector 
organisations being awarded contracts.

The contract value; See above
Which funding mechanisms, either grant
or contracts, has been used;

See above

Which department/service has
contracted the third sector organisation;

See above

The measures of success established for
the work; 

The measuring of success varies 
depending on the department leading on 
the area. This would be part of a more 
detailed service specification so 
currently would not be reported  except 
as part of an annual report  over certain 
service areas e.g. Families First

What the intended benefits of the work 
are.

Again, this varies between departments 
with certain departments using more 
details concerning benefits, outcomes 
and KPI's - generally within internal, 
departmental annual reports. 

AREA: IN PLACE: UNDER DEVELOPMENT: NOT IN PLACE:
2.  Funding Processes:
DESIGNING SERVICES:
The local authority draws on the third
sector’s expertise and knowledge in
designing new services to be provided by
the third sector.

The Social Regeneration Department 
hold discussions with certain third sector 
organisations in order to evolve Legacy 
funding or the Families First Programme. 

The is currently no standardised formal 
process of utilising the third sectors 
expertise and knowledge in designing 
new services.

In designing services, the local authority
clearly sets out:
what demand the service is meeting; The Social Regeneration Department 

focus on wellbeing assessments, periodic 
reviews and annual evaluations on some 
of their services. 

The Local Authority has no formalised, 
over-arching mechanism or process of 
capturing what demand the services is 
meeting.

P
age 11



how it has decided on the type of
service that it requires;

There is no document or strategy that 
sets out the type of service that is 
required by the Local Authority.

whether innovative solutions are
required;

There is no document or strategy that 
sets out whether innovative solutions 
are required by the Local Authority.

how the local authority will engage with 
current and potential providers to 
further refine and develop the service.

The refining and development of some 
services is undertaken individually by 
departments and is generally embedded 
into contracts and service specifications 
to ensure that the third sector is central 
to the ongoing development of services.

EFFECTIVE AWARD SYSTEMS:
The local authority has established a 
single centralised and corporate funding 
system for the management and ward of 
all third sector monies.

The Local Authority has currently no 
single centralised and corporate funding 
system for the management and ward of 
all third sector monies.

The local authority has effective 
systems to award funding to 
organisations that sets out:
a clear funding timetable that is
available to all potential bidders so that
they can prepare for opportunities;

Individual departments have certain 
funding timescales which they 
traditionally award funding to third 
sector organisations, however, the 
timescales and levels of funding are not 
formalised. The Local Authority lacks a 
conclusive, long-term strategic 
approach.

the process that will be used to make
a decision (for example, seeking
quotations or using a tender or proposal
process);

He Local Authority's has its own financial 
regulations that it has to adhere to from 
a procurement perspective; however, it 
is not clear whether all departments 
adhered to these regulations when 
funding the third sector organisations. 

the value and risk associated with the
various funding routes;

This is communicated through all 
tendering and contracting processes.

whether light-touch processes in line The Local Authority should adhere to the 

P
age 12



with the EU Public Contracts Directive
are possible for appointing organisations
to deliver the work;

EU Public Contracts Directive where 
possible.

clear and published criteria that are
understood by all organisations seeking
funding, including community benefit
clauses;

All criteria, outcomes and community 
benefit clauses are stipulated within any 
tender or contract.

the cost and resources required for the
local authority to oversee and administer
the process;

This is communicated through all 
tendering and contracting processes.

the length of time that funding will be
provided; and

This is communicated through all 
tendering and contracting processes.

how full cost recovery will be addressed. This is communicated through all 
tendering and contracting processes.

EFFICENT AWARD SYSTEMS:
The local authority has efficient 
corporate systems to award funding 
based on:
concise and clear application processes; The Procurement Department assist 

internal departments with the 
development of tender opportunities 
and support with the application 
process.

use of online and electronic systems to
distribute and collate information and
bids;

The Local Authority use Sell2Wales and 
Etender Wales to procure the majority of 
the services they wish to advertise to the 
third sector.

the minimum number of stages and
processes required to make a decision

This is communicated through all 
tendering and contracting processes.

decisions being delegated to the lowest 
level.

This is communicated through all 
tendering and contracting processes.

P
age 13



AREA: IN PLACE: UNDER DEVELOPMENT: NOT IN PLACE:
GRANTS OR CONTRACTING:
The local authority has set out the 
circumstances when it will use grant 
funding and when it will contract for 
services. This has been shared with all 
potential bidders, including the third 
sector.

There is no current circumstance in place 
where grant finance will be used to 
contract services. This is due primarily to 
the fact that there has been a significant 
shift from grant funding in many areas 
and issues relating to the lack of 
accountability with grant awards. The 
Local Authority is moving toward a more 
service delivery approach. 

The local authority ensures that this
process is consistent and appropriate to 
the risks and size of the funding 
provided.

The Social Regeneration Department 
evaluate quarterly performance and 
contract management arrangements.

There is no Local Authority wide process 
of evaluating the funding given to the 
third sector or the level of service being 
provided generally.

The local authority’s contract terms and
conditions are proportionate to the level 
of funding being made and are specific 
to the work that is being funded.

Generic contract 'Terms and Conditions' 
are generally utilised, however, service 
specifications are unique to the service 
requirements and the level detail varies 
between departments.

The local authority reviews these
funding processes to ensure they are not 
unintentionally excluding third sector 
organisations from securing local 
authority work.

From a Social Regeneration perspective 
contracts are reviewed annually and 
tendered for in line with the Local 
Authorities financial regulations. 

The Local Authority do not have an 
overarching review process or lead 
person who analyses generic funding 
processes to ensure they are not 
unintentionally excluding third sector 
organisations from securing local 
authority work.

TRAINING:
The local authority provides training to
support the third sector covering:
how to apply for funding – the dos and
don’ts;

It is perceived that this is the role of the 
county voluntary council and not the 
Local Authority.

complying with the local authority’s
procurement systems;

Again, this is something that the county 
voluntary council should cover.

data collection processes; The level of detail differs amongst Local 
Authority departments. 

MTCBC has no formalised data collection 
process in place which all departments 
can use.

P
age 14



performance management and scrutiny
arrangements;

The Local Authority has agreed 
corporate processes in place for the 
management and evaluation of 
contracts.

payment cycles and performance
targets;

The Local Authority has agreed 
corporate processes in place for the 
management and evaluation of 
contracts.

contract termination/continuation 
requirements.

The Local Authority has agreed 
corporate processes in place for the 
management and evaluation of 
contracts.

AREA: IN PLACE: UNDER DEVELOPMENT: NOT IN PLACE:
3.  Managing Performance:
INFORMATION COLLECTION:
The local authority has specified the
information required to monitor and
evaluate the performance of third sector
organisations it funds and this is set out 
in the agreement for funded work.

This varies across Local Authority 
departments with the Social 
Regeneration department using the 
agreed corporate processes which are in 
place for the management and 
evaluation of contracts.

The Local Authority does not have a 
conclusive mechanism or person to 
monitor and evaluate the performance 
of third sector organisations it funds.

The information only measures relevant
activity.

Varies across internal departments.

The systems to collect information are
streamlined and efficient, and third 
sector organisations only submit 
information once

Currently, there is no overarching system 
in place. This can be challenging and 
data needs to be disaggregated where 
organisations hold multiple contracts; 
particularly relating to different funding 
streams.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW:
The local authority regularly reports 
third sector funding to scrutiny 
committee(s) against a balanced and 

In short, this does not happen within the 
Local Authority at present. Individual 
projects tend to be reported upon solely 

P
age 15



local-authority-wide set of performance 
information. This covers:

within their own departments.

• clear standards of how and what third
sector organisations are required to
perform against specific to the service
the local authority funds;

Varies between departments with 
service specifications developed for each 
service.

No current, overarching Local Authority 
standard of how and what third sector 
organisations are required to perform 
against specific to the service the local 
authority funds.

• conclusions of external 
audit/inspection
reviews; 

Varies between departments with 
service specifications developed for each 
service.

No current, overarching Local Authority 
process of instigating or ascertaining the 
conclusions of external audit/inspection
Reviews.

relevant service-based performance
data.

Varies between departments with 
service specifications developed for each 
service.

No current, overarching Local Authority 
to evaluate service-based performance.

The local authority has the right
processes in place to scrutinise and
judge performance. These should be
proportionate to the value of the 
funding but ensure that they provide the 
local authority with assurance that its 
funding is achieving the expected 
outcomes.

Varies between departments with 
service specifications developed for each 
service.

Currently no process or mechanism in 
place where the Local Authority 
scrutinises and judges performance and 
value for money - regardless of the 
contract value.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT:
Risks associated with third sector 
funding are considered at both a 
corporate and service level in developing 
and agreeing risk management plans 
across the local authority.

There is no process of or examples of the 
Local Authority undertaking financial 
assessments of third sector providers, 
especially those when receive higher 
values of finance. 

A rolling programme of internal audit 
systems testing and compliance reviews 
is undertaken on the local authority’s 
funding of third sector services, systems 
and practices.

Currently no rolling programme of 
internal audit systems testing and 
compliance reviews is undertaken on the 
local authority’s funding of third sector 
services, systems and practices.

P
age 16


	Agenda
	3 Local Authority Funding of Third Sector Services
	Appendix 1


